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1352 at his DEA registered address was
the only warehouse unit that he or
Seaside leased at the time. The
investigation revealed, however, that
Narog also leased an additional storage
unit 206/207. Narog intentionally
concealed the existence of this
additional storage until from DEA
investigators. DEA surveillance revealed
thousands of pounds of
pseudoethedrine being placed into 206/
207. Narog further stated to investigators
that, as the sole owner, president,
director, and employee of Seaside, he
was the only individual with access to
unit 1352. DEA surveillance revealed,
however, several different individuals
accessing both 1352 and 206/207
without Narog, and removing
pseudoephedrine that eventually was
diverted to California or seized in
Florida.

The Administrator finds this lack of
candor, taken together with Seaside’s
and Narog’s demonstrated cavalier
disregard of the statutory law and
regulations concerning the distribution,
handling, and exportation requirements
pertaining to List I chemicals, makes
questionable Seaside’s and Narog’s
commitment to the DEA statutory and
regulatory requirements designed to
protect the public from the diversion of
controlled substances and listed
chemicals. Aseel Incorporated,
Wholesale Division, 66 Fed. Reg. 35459
(2001); Terrence E. Murphy, 61 FR 2841
(1996).

Accordingly, the Administrator of the
Drug Enforcement Administration,
pursuant to the authority vested in him
by 21 U.S.C. 823 and 824 and 28 CFR
0.100(b) and 1.014, hereby order that
DEA Certificate of Registration
004422SMY, previously issued to
Seaside Pharmaceutical Company, be,
and it hereby is, revoked; and any
pending applications for renewal or
modification of said registration, be, and
hereby are, denied. Furthermore, the
application of Seaside Pharmaceutical
Company dated March 28, 2000, for
registration as an exporter of List I
chemicals is also hereby denied.

The order is effective April 18, 2002.

Dated: March 11, 2002.

Asa Hutchinson,
Administrator.
[FR Doc. 02–6569 Filed 3–18–02; 8:45 am]
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On or about June 27, 2001, the Deputy
Assistant Administrator, Office of
Diversion Control, Drug Enforcement
Administration (DEA), issued an Order
to Show Cause (OTSC) by certified mail
to Southern Illinois Wholesale, Inc.
(SIW), located in Dongola, Illinois,
notifying it of an opportunity to show
cause as to why the DEA should not
deny its application, dated December 3,
2000, for a DEA Certificate of
Registration as a distributor of the List
1 chemicals ephedrine,
pseudoephedrine, and
phenylpropanolamine, pursuant to 21
U.S.C. 823(h), as being inconsistent with
the public interest. The order also
notified SIW that, should no request for
hearing be filed within 30 days, the
right to a hearing would be waived.

The OTSC was received July 16, 2001,
as indicated by the signed postal return
receipt. Since that time, no further
response has been received from the
applicant nor any person purporting to
represent the applicant. Therefore, the
Administrator of the DEA, finding that
(1) thirty days having passed since
receipt of the Order to Show Cause, and
(2) no request for a hearing having been
received, concludes that SIW is deemed
to have waived its right to a hearing.
After considering relevant material from
the investigative file in this matter, the
Administrator now enters his final order
without a hearing pursuant to 21 CFR
1301.43(d) and (e) and 1301.46.

The Administrator finds as follows.
List I chemicals are chemicals that may
be used in the manufacture of a
controlled substance in violation of the
Controlled Substances Act. 21 U.S.C.
802(34); 21 CFR 1310.02(a).
Pseudoephedrine, ephedrine, and
phenylpropanolamine are List I
chemicals that are commonly used to
illegally manufacture
methamphetamine, a Schedule II
controlled substance, or amphetamine, a
Schedule III controlled substance.
Methamphetamine is an extremely
potent central nervous system
stimulant, and its abuse is a growing
problem in the United States.

The Administrator finds that on or
about December 3, 2000, an application
was submitted by and on behalf of SIW,
by George W. Howard (Howard) for DEA
registration as a distributor of the above-
referenced List I chemicals.

During the February 23, 2001, pre-
registration inspection, Howard

informed DEA investigators that he
proposed to sell various products from
his parent’s home, including List I
chemical products. Howard states he
had started out two yeas before,
operating bubble gum vending
machines, and had recently arranged
through an internet consulting company
to sell novelty items to retailers. He
further stated that some small retail
stores in the Southern Illinois and Cape
Girardeau, Missouri, area would buy his
other products only if he could provide
List I chemical products. Howard
alleged to DEA investigators that
retailers in general would only do
business with him if he could provide
listed chemical products. He stated he
wished to compete in the market that
Four Seasons and Heartland held. Both
of these distributors previously held
DEA registrations that were surrendered
during DEA actions against the
companies. The DEA investigations into
those companies revealed the markets
they served had histories or ordering
listed chemical products in quantities
far greater than legitimate demand
would require. DEA took action against
the registrations of those two companies
because the investigations showed a
substantial amount of this
pseudoephedrine was being diverted to
the illicit manufacture of
methamphetamine.

During the pre-registration inspection,
Howard was unclear regarding what
licenses he needed to conduct business
in either Illinois or Missouri. He further
stated he was using his parent’s
basement for storage of his products.
DEA investigators noted that Howard
had a tendency to delete telephone
messages left for him before listening to
the entire message; this resulted in a
number of miscommunications between
Howard and the local DEA office. In
addition, at the preregistration
inspection Howard was unable to locate
information previously sent to him by
DEA investigators concerning the
responsibilities of a listed chemical
registrant. He admitted that he had not
been taking the registration process very
seriously. Howard stated he wanted to
handle List I chemical products because
his competition does; and also because
he wanted to recoup the cost of
obtaining a DEA registration.

Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 823(h), the
Administrator may deny an application
for a DEA Certificate of Registration if
he determines that granting the
registration would be inconsistent with
the public interest. Section 823(h)
requires the following factors he
considered:

(1) Maintenance by the applicant of
effective controls against diversion of
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listed chemicals into other than
legitimate channels;

(2) Compliance by the applicant with
applicable Federal, State, and local law;

(3) Any prior conviction record of the
applicant under Federal or State laws
relating to controlled substances or to
chemicals controlled under Federal or
State law;

(4) Any past experience of the
applicant in the manufacture and
distribution of chemicals; and

(5) Such other factors as are relevant
to and consistent with the public health
and safety.

Like the public interest analysis for
practitioners and pharmacies pursuant
to subsection (f) of section 823, these
factors are to be considered in the
disjunctive; the Administrator may rely
on any one or combination of factors
and may give each factor the weight he
deems appropriate in determining
whether a registration should be
revoked or an application for
registration be denied. See, e.g. Energy
Outlet, 64 FR 14269 (1999). See also
Henry J. Schwartz, Jr., M.D., 54 FR
16422 (1989).

The Administrator finds factors four
and five relevant to this application.

Regarding factor four, the applicant’s
past experience in the distribution of
chemicals, the DEA investigation
revealed that Howard has no previous
experience in handling listed chemicals
or distributing listed chemical products.
Moreover, he has limited experience in
the retailing business, having begun his
business about two years previously to
his application.

Regarding factor five, other factors
relevant to and consistent with the
public safety, the Administrator finds
that due to the applicant’s lack of
experience in handling listed chemicals,
his desire to distribute to a market that
prior DEA investigations show has a
history of excessive distributions, his
desire to distribute to customers who’s
primary interests appear to be List I
chemical products, and his apparent
unpreparedness to take on the
responsibilities of a listed chemical
registrant, the Administrator concludes
it would be inconsistent with the public
interest to grant this application.

Accordingly, the Administrator of the
Drug Enforcement Administration,
pursuant to the authority vested in him
by 21 U.S.C. 823 and 28 CFR 0.100(b)
and 0.104, hereby orders that the
application for a DEA Certificate of
Registration submitted by Southern
Illinois Wholesale be denied. This order
is effective April 18, 2002.

Dated: March 11, 2002.
Asa Hutchinson,
Administrator.
[FR Doc. 02–6570 Filed 3–18–02; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–09–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Immigration and Naturalization Service

Agency Information Collection
Activities: Extension of Existing
Collection; Comment Request

ACTION: 60-day Notice of Information
Collection Under Review; Guidelines on
Producing Master Exhibits for Asylum
Applications.

The Department of Justice,
Immigration and Naturalization Service
has submitted the following information
collection request for review and
clearance in accordance with the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995. The
proposed information collection is
published to obtain comments from the
public and affected agencies. Comments
are encouraged and will be accepted for
sixty days until May 20, 2002.

Written comments and suggestions
from the public and affected agencies
concerning the proposed collection of
information should address one or more
of the following four points:

(1) Evaluate whether the proposed
collection of information is necessary
for the proper performance of the
functions of the agency, including
whether the information will have
practical utility;

(2) Evaluate the accuracy of the
agencies estimate of the burden of the
proposed collection of information,
including the validity of the
methodology and assumptions used;

(3) Enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and

(4) Minimize the burden of the
collection of information on those who
are to respond, including through the
use of appropriate automated,
electronic, mechanical, or other
technological collection techniques or
other forms of information technology,
e.g., permitting electronic submission of
responses.

Overview of this information
collection:

(1) Type of Information Collection:
Extension of a currently approved
collection.

(2) Title of the Form/Collection:
Guidelines on Producing Master
Exhibits for Asylum Applications.

(3) Agency form number, if any, and
the applicable component of the

Department of Justice sponsoring the
collection: No Agency Form Number;
File No. OMB–04. Office of
International Affairs, Immigration and
Naturalization Service.

(4) Affected public who will be asked
or required to respond, as well as a brief
abstract: Primary: Not-for-profit
institutions. Master Exhibits are a means
by which credible information on
country conditions related to asylum
applications are made available to
Asylum and Immigration Officers for
use in adjudicating cases.

(5) An estimate of the total number of
respondents and the amount of time
estimated for an average respondent to
respond: 20 responses at 80 hours per
response.

(6) An estimate of the total public
burden (in hours) associated with the
collection: 1,600 annual burden hours.

If you have additional comments,
suggestions, or need a copy of the
proposed information collection
instrument with instructions, or
additional information, please contact
Richard A. Sloan 202–514–3291,
Director, Regulations and Forms
Services Division, Immigration and
Naturalization Service, U.S. Department
of Justice, Room 4304, 425 I Street, NW.,
Washington, DC 20536. Additionally,
comments and/or suggestions regarding
the item(s) contained in this notice,
especially regarding the estimated
public burden and associated response
time may also be directed to Mr.
Richard. A. Sloan.

If additional information is required
contact: Mr. Robert B. Briggs, Clearance
Officer, United States Department of
Justice, Information Management and
Security Staff, Justice Management
Division, Patrick Henry Building, 601 D
Street, NW, Suite 1600, Washington, DC
20530.

Dated: March 13, 2002.
Richard A. Sloan,
Director, Department Clearance Officer,
United States Department of Justice,
Immigration and Naturalization Service.
[FR Doc. 02–6503 Filed 3–18–02; 8:45 am]
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